


EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
PASADENA CITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING  
Wednesday, March 10, 2021 

4:00p.m. Open Session 
Pasadena City College 

ZOOM Conference  
1570 E Colorado Blvd., Pasadena, California 91106 

Prior to roll call, I would like to make clear for the record of this meeting, and it should be reflected in the 
minutes, that this PCC Foundation Executive Committee meeting is conducted pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 54953, as amended by Gov. Gavin Newsom in Executive Order N-25-20, dated 
March 12, 2020, in that all members of the committee are at their residences and all are participating by remote 
video- or teleconference. 

It is now appropriate to conduct roll call. 

[ROLL CALL]  

I would now like to request that each member of the board, in turn, respond to the following questions. I will 
start with COMMITTEE MEMBER #1: 

1. [COMMITTEE MEMBER NAME], can you hear me well?
2. Were you able to hear our proceedings up until now?
3. Do you have a copy of the agenda for this meeting?

Next, I would like to request that COMMITTEE MEMBER #2 respond to the same questions: 

[REPEAT THE SAME QUESTIONS]  

[REPEAT THROUGH ALL COMMITTEE MEMBERS] 

I would now like to ask that any member of the PCC Foundation Executive Committee speak up at this time if 
they have not been able to clearly hear any member of the Committee. [BRIEF PAUSE] Hearing no comment, 
the record should reflect that all committee members present have indicated that they were able to hear all other 
committee members clearly. 

I would next request that any committee member speak up at this time if such committee member has any 
reason to believe, based on voice recognition or otherwise, that any person representing themselves to be a 
certain committee member is not truly so. [BRIEF PAUSE] Hearing no comment, the record should reflect that 
no committee member has expressed doubt that any committee members are the parties participating by 
teleconference.  

I would now like to advise the committee members and the public that any votes taken during the remote 
conference portion of this meeting must be taken by roll call. 

Page 2



From: Alexander Boekelheide
To: Alexander Boekelheide
Subject: Board of Trustees Meeting Report, Jan. 20, 2021
Date: Wednesday, January 20, 2021 11:13:30 PM

Hello:
 
In an effort to help our community stay informed about actions taken during governance meetings,
I’m pleased to share a report from the most recent meeting of the Pasadena Area Community
College District Board of Trustees.
 

The board granted the college the authority to borrow funds for the reconstruction of the
Sarafian Building. With 80 percent of the project paid by the state, PCC is responsible for
finding local financing for the balance. The college will issue “certificates of participation”
against existing college property to raise the necessary funds, and the resulting debt is
expected to be retired by general-obligation bond funds at a future date.
The board passed two resolutions commemorating International Holocaust Remembrance
Day on Jan. 27 and Black History Month in February.
Michael Bush, PCC’s assistant superintendent/vice president for business services, gave a
presentation on Gov. Newsom’s proposed budget and its impacts on the college. With
revenues higher than expected during the COVID-19 pandemic, the budget eases some
financial pressures from the current fiscal year.
Associate Vice President Candace Jones of Information Technology Services gave an overview
of the college’s Technology Master Plan, digging into the data that is driving its creation. Upon
its expected approval later this spring, the document will serve as a guide for the next five
years of the college’s technological investments.
Isela Ocegueda, who is dean of academic affairs, gave an update on PCC’s dual enrollment
activities. By Fall 2021, Ocegueda estimated, PCC will serve more than 1,000 high school
students through dual enrollment programs at 10 local high schools.
The board received the independent audit of the PCC Foundation for fiscal year 2019-20.

The board formally announced the completion of a project to bring the 5th-floor bathrooms of
the R Building into compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.
The college lowered its mileage reimbursement rate to 56 cents per mile, in line with IRS
recommendations, thanks to action taken by the board tonight.
The board gave permission to solicit proposals to upgrade the college’s phone system.
PCC’s Small Business Development Center received $100,000 to help local businesses affected
by the COVID-19 pandemic.
The college will issue a contract worth more than $520,000 to AMS.NET, Inc., to upgrade
PCC’s network infrastructure.
PCC is collecting prequalification proposals for contractors wishing to work on the
reconstruction of the U/Sarafian Building.
The board authorized the college to terminate its affiliation with Intelecom, a joint authority
that provides televised college courses.

Page 3

mailto:aboekelheide@pasadena.edu
mailto:aboekelheide@pasadena.edu


The board approved a number of personnel actions:
Chellsy Atilano joins Student Services as an educational advisor this week.
Oshin Karami will serve as acting supervisor in Facilities Services until June 30, 2021,
and Stephan McGrue has been named interim Talent Search coordinator through June
1, 2021.
Michaela Mares-Tamayo will leave PCC this spring. Gloria Horton (31 years of service to
Languages & ESL), Robert Lee (29 years in English) and Roger Marheine (41 years of
service to English) had their retirements formally accepted by the board. Trustee
Anthony Fellow remarked upon the fact that these three faculty members have 101
years of experience between them. Four employees will leave the college this month:
Claudette Bentley (Information Technology Services), Jordan Oost (Community
Education Center), Jeanette Pace (Pathways FYE Program), and Shereece Sims (Math
and Computer Science).

In her update to the board, Dr. Endrijonas shared that PCC is applying to be a distribution
center for the COVID-19 vaccine. The college is also working with the City of Pasadena to host
a city-operated drive-thru vaccine clinic on the Colorado campus next week. Learn more
through the City’s website.
The winter retreat for the Board of Trustees has been moved to Saturday, January 30, from 1
to 4 p.m.
The meeting was adjourned in memory of Joanne Montgomery, a longtime schoolteacher and
Monrovia resident who was a trustee of Citrus College for 20 years. Montgomery passed away
Dec. 14, 2020.

 
If you’d like to know more, you can access the full board packet online (click “Jan 20, 2021” under
the “Meetings” tab). Video of the meeting is also available on our YouTube channel.
 
The next regularly scheduled board business meeting will be Wednesday, January 20, at 6 p.m. As a
consequence of the coronavirus outbreak, this meeting will be conducted remotely. Details
regarding public participation will be available in advance of the meeting.
 
Thank you,
Alex Boekelheide
 
 
 
-- 
Alex Boekelheide
(“Buckle-hide”)
Special Assistant to the Superintendent/President
Pasadena City College
He, him, his
 
Download a logo? Visit our Visual Style Guide

Page 4

https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/covid-19-vaccine#vaccine-allocation-phases
https://www.cityofpasadena.net/public-health/covid-19-vaccine#vaccine-allocation-phases
https://go.boarddocs.com/ca/pasadena/Board.nsf/Public
https://youtu.be/zhJgB3resXU
https://pasadena.edu/strategic-communications-and-marketing/guides-and-reference/brand/visual-style-guide/


 
Office: 626-585-7422
aboekelheide@pasadena.edu
 
@PCCLancer
facebook.com/PasadenaCityCollege
www.pasadena.edu

Page 5

mailto:aboekelheide@pasadena.edu
https://twitter.com/pcclancer
https://www.facebook.com/pasadenacitycollege
http://www.pasadena.edu/


From: Alexander Boekelheide
To: Alexander Boekelheide
Subject: Board of Trustees Meeting Report, Feb. 17, 2021
Date: Wednesday, February 17, 2021 10:40:15 PM

Hello:
 
In an effort to help our community stay informed about actions taken during governance meetings,
I’m pleased to share a report from the most recent meeting of the Pasadena Area Community
College District Board of Trustees.
 

The meeting opened with remembrances of three members of the PCC community who
passed away in recent weeks.

Bobbi Abram, executive director of the PCC Foundation, spoke in honor of Lacreta
Scott, longtime friend of the college and wife of 66 years to former State Senator, PCC
Superintendent/President, and California Community Colleges Chancellor Jack Scott.
Lacreta Scott passed away from complications related to COVID-19 on Feb. 6.
Cynthia Olivo, vice president for student services, and student advisor Trevor Brackett
shared memories of Eli Underwood. Eli was a graduate of Pasadena High School who
thrived as a PCC student. He dreamed of attending Clark Atlanta University. Eli
Underwood passed away on Jan. 28.
Jim Schubert, a member of the math faculty, was honored by Math & Computer
Science Dean Carrie Starbird. Jim started at PCC as an adjunct in 1988 and was
remembered as “one of the most caring and sincere people any of us knew,” Dean
Starbird said. Jim’s death was related to COVID-19, and Dean Starbird asked that the
entire campus remain vigilant in his memory, taking proactive steps to slow the spread
of this disease.

Kari Bolen, who joined the college in November as PCC’s first Chief Diversity, Equity, and
Inclusion Officer, shared an update on college activities related to her area since her arrival.
Dr. Bolen has met with a range of groups and individuals on campus in an effort to bring
forward a “shared language and a shared vision” for equity and inclusion at the collegewide
level, she reported. The board aims to adopt a Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion mission
statement this academic year, and discussed generally its efforts to do so.
Dean Micah Young gave an overview of the college’s Health Sciences programs. These 11
programs consistently have delivered strong results for graduates and the local economy,
boosting wages and quality of living for many. The college also has extensive partnerships
with local health care providers and schools of medicine or nursing. The programs have only
gained in importance during the COVID-19 pandemic.
The board formally accepted the external audit for the 2019-2020 fiscal year, which again
contained no findings or adjustments related to the district’s financial position. Trustee John
Martin quoted the external auditing team as saying the report was like “something you’d stick
to the refrigerator,” a true point of pride for the district.
In the college’s quarterly financial report for the period ending Dec. 31, 2020, the board
approved statements showing a revenue surplus of roughly $1 million in unexpected CalPERS
savings.
The board adjusted fees charged to nonresident students to $307 per unit and a $10 capital

Page 6

mailto:aboekelheide@pasadena.edu
mailto:aboekelheide@pasadena.edu


outlay fee per semester, in line with those fees charged by peer institutions.
With its approval of a memorandum of understanding with the El Monte Union High School
District, the board solidified dual enrollment agreements with all seven of PCC’s constituent K-
12 districts.
Recognizing her positions as a working parent and elected official, Student Trustee David
Ramirez nominated Trustee Sandra Chen Lau to a seat on the Los Angeles County School
Trustees Association, and the board confirmed the move.
The board approved two resolutions: One honoring Women’s History Month in March 2021,
and the other calling for equal pay in California’s Community Colleges. Regarding the second
proclamation, Trustee Linda Wah and Superintendent/President Erika Endrijonas spoke on
California’s history of leadership in the equal pay movement, particularly with the formation
of the California Community Colleges’ Women’s Caucus. “People should be paid for the work
that they do, and there should be equity, and it shouldn’t be according to a formula,” Dr.
Endrijonas said.
As it approved two state contracts worth nearly $600,000 for childcare services to students,
Trustee Sandra Chen Lau remarked that the board should advocate for increasing state
funding for childcare, as the contracts amount to less than $100 per day per child.
PCC will solicit proposals for formal environmental reports related to the Facilities Master
Plan, under action taken by the board tonight.
The board approved a number of personnel actions:

Dolores Ybarra has become director of development and operations at the PCC
Foundation under a reorganization in that department. Carol Calandra will serve as
interim director of the Veterans Resource Center and David Sigala Gomez will serve as
acting educational advisor in Extended Opportunity Programs & Services through June
30.
Donna Nielsen (21 years of service in Health Sciences), Rezvan Kline (33 years in Office
Services) and James Large (39 years in Visual Arts and Media Studies) have retired from
PCC. Sylvia Pinedo, Rosa Prado, and Robert Gordon have also left the college.

In her report Dr. Endrijonas shared that PCC’s enrollment for the Spring 2021 semester is
down 7-8 percent from last year, which is in line with reported figures from peer institutions
in Southern California.
Carlos “Tito” Altamirano gave his report as president of the Management Association while
cradling his sleeping daughter on his shoulder.
The meeting was adjourned in memory of Lacreta Scott, Eli Underwood, and Jim Schubert.

 
If you’d like to know more, you can access the full board packet online (click “Feb 17, 2021” under
the “Meetings” tab). Video of the meeting is also available on our YouTube Channel.
 
The next regularly scheduled board business meeting will be Wednesday, March 17, at 6 p.m. As a
consequence of the coronavirus outbreak, this meeting will be conducted remotely. Details
regarding public participation will be available in advance of the meeting.
 
Thank you,
Alex Boekelheide
 

Page 7

https://go.boarddocs.com/ca/pasadena/Board.nsf/Public
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8cfNmxflnSY


 
 
-- 
Alex Boekelheide
(“Buckle-hide”)
Special Assistant to the Superintendent/President
Pasadena City College
He, him, his
 
Download a logo? Visit our Visual Style Guide
 
Office: 626-585-7422
aboekelheide@pasadena.edu
 
@PCCLancer
facebook.com/PasadenaCityCollege
www.pasadena.edu

Page 8

https://pasadena.edu/strategic-communications-and-marketing/guides-and-reference/brand/visual-style-guide/
mailto:aboekelheide@pasadena.edu
https://twitter.com/pcclancer
https://www.facebook.com/pasadenacitycollege
http://www.pasadena.edu/


EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
PASADENA CITY COLLEGE FOUNDATION 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING  
Wednesday, January 13, 2021 

4:00 P.M. Open Session 
Pasadena City College 

ZOOM Conference https://cccconfer.zoom.us/j/96544167344 
1570 East Colorado Boulevard, Pasadena, California 91106 

 
 
                Page 1 
The Executive Committee of the Pasadena City College Foundation met on Wednesday,  
January 13, 2021 via Zoom video-conference, Pasadena City College, 1570 East Colorado Boulevard, 
Pasadena, California 91106. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL  
The meeting was called to order at 4:03 p.m. by Ms. Gloria Pitzer, President. 
  
  Executive Committee Members Present 

Ms. Charmayne Mills Ealy 
Dr. Erika Endrijonas, PCC Superintendent/President  
Mr. Ralph Frammolino 
Mr. Bill Hawkins, Past President 
Mr. Hoyt Hilsman, Secretary (joined at 4:31 p.m.) 
Dr. Robert Miller 
Mr. Michael Mitchell 
Ms. Ryan Newman 
Ms. Gloria Pitzer, President 
Ms. Clara Potes-Fellow 
Mr. Don Schweitzer, Vice President 
Dr. Jack Scott 
Mr. Greg Sun 
 
Executive Committee Members Absent 
Mr. Wade Winter, Treasurer 

 
Liaison, Board of Trustees 
Mr. James Osterling  
 
PCC Foundation Staff Present 
Ms. Bobbi Abram, Executive Director  
Ms. Dolores Ybarra, Development Manager 
Ms. Kris McPeak, Director of Operations 

 
 
II.  OPEN SESSION  
This PCC Foundation Executive Committee meeting is being conducted pursuant to California 
Government Code section 54953 as amended by Governor Gavin Newsom in Executive Order N-25-20 
dated March 12th of this year in that all members of the committee are at their residences and all are 
participating by remote video- or teleconference. The committee members were asked that any member 
of the Executive Committee speak up at this time if they have not been able to clearly hear any member. 
Hearing no comment, the record reflects that all members present have indicated that they were able to 
hear all other members clearly. The members were asked that any member speak up at this time if such 
member has any reason to believe, based on voice recognition or otherwise, that any person 
representing themselves to be a certain member is not truly so. Hearing no comment, the record reflects 
that no member expressed doubt that any members are the parties participating by teleconference. The 
Executive Committee and the public were then advised that any votes taken during the remote 
conference portion of this meeting must be taken by roll call. 
 
 

Page 9



Executive Committee Meeting 
PCC Foundation  Page 2 
January 13, 2021 
 

A. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND RECOGNITIONS 
There were no announcements or recognitions.  
     

B. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS  
There was no public comment. 

 
C. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

Dr. Endrijonas noted that the new budget will be reviewed at tonight’s Budget and Audit 
Committee meeting as well as consideration of the Certificate of Participation notes to 
fund the College’s portion of the Sarafian building replacement.  In the next few days we 
will know what our bond rating is.  At the last board meeting the Board voted to approve 
tax revenue anticipation notes (TRANs) authorizing up to $25 million.  Starting next 
month, the State will defer giving us money to operate until July.  Based on our cash on 
hand right now, that means we will need to take out about $18 million of TRANs.  In 
terms of the Sarafian building, the fencing is up all around it and our demolition is 
starting with asbestos abatement.  Approval was received from the Chancellor’s office 
and we are waiting for the Department of Finance to review our bid package for the 
actual project.  In terms of enrollments, our winter enrollments were up by a bit over 100 
students.  We are still enrolling students for spring.  Congress passed additional funding 
and a change as to the allocation for the CARES Act dollars.  The new funding will be 
allocated in a combination of headcount and FTS, potentially $30 million for the College.  
 

D. BOARD OF TRUSTEES’ REPORT 
Trustee Osterling mentioned that he has called a meeting for the naming opportunities 
at PCC.  The ad hoc committee consists of himself, Berlinda Brown and will be chaired 
by Tammy Silver.  Dr. Endrijonas and Ms. Abram will also be on the committee. 
    

E. DISCUSSION ITEMS WITH POSSIBLE ACTION 
1. Approval of Minutes from the December 9, 2020 meeting. 

 
MOTION:  ON MOTION OF Dr. Endrijonas and seconded by Dr. Scott, the Executive 

Committee voted by the unanimous vote (aye: Ealy, Endrijonas, Frammolino, Hawkins, Miller, Mitchell, Newman, Pitzer, 
Potes-Fellow, Schweitzer, Scott, Sun; absent: Hilsman, Winter) of the twelve members present to approve the 
minutes of the Executive Committee meeting held on December 9, 2020. 
 

2. Approval of Expenditures from December 1, 2020 
 

MOTION:  ON MOTION OF Ms. Ealy and seconded by Dr. Miller, the Executive Committee 
voted by the unanimous vote (aye: Ealy, Endrijonas, Frammolino, Hawkins, Miller, Mitchell, Newman, Pitzer, Potes-Fellow, 
Schweitzer, Scott, Sun; absent: Hilsman, Winter) of the twelve members present to approve the expenditures as 
presented. 

 
                           3.Receipt of Foundation Audit 2019-2020 
 

MOTION:  ON MOTION OF Mr. Hawkins and seconded by Ms. Ealy, the Executive 
Committee voted by the unanimous vote (aye: Ealy, Endrijonas, Frammolino, Hawkins, Miller, Mitchell, Newman, Pitzer, 
Potes-Fellow, Schweitzer, Scott, Sun; absent: Hilsman, Winter) of the twelve members present to receive the 
Foundation Audit for 2019-2020. 
 
 

F. REPORTS AND PROJECTS 
 
1. Finance & Investment --  

Mr. Michael Mitchell mentioned that with the revenue perspective the year to date 
actual endowment revenue is $1.635 million favorable by $1.5 million which is 
courtesy of a gift from Adelaide Hixon.  Scholarship revenue is favorable by 
$250,000 with a couple of gifts from Shelley Gaskin and some additional gifts from 
Ernie Posey.  In terms of expenses, everything is on track.  We are negative on the 

Page 10



Executive Committee Meeting 
PCC Foundation  Page 3 
January 13, 2021 
 

administrative fee of $175,000; that is simply because that fee is withdrawn in one 
lump sum on July the first and is basically amortized over the year.  For 
investments, the long-term portfolio is a little over $32 million as of the end of 
December.  The total investment income which includes unrealized gains is $4.2 
million.  The accounts receivable include pledges of $2.349 million as of the end of 
December. 
   

2. Advancement Committee Report –  
Dr. Robert Miller noted that we have raised to date $2.8 million, restricted we have 
raised $2.7 million, and our goal for unrestricted is a little under $100,000.  The 
expected pledge payments through the end of 2021 total $85,000.  The expected 
board giving for 2021 is $15,000.  Foundation staff would be left to raise a little over 
$54,000.  Mr. Posey provided another $25,000 for nursing scholarships and has 
offered to equip our students with PPE.  A gift of $10,000 was received from James 
and Olga Kendall to support natural sciences and math.  The goal in annual giving 
was to raise $15,000 but we have actually raised $16,570.  The goal for Giving 
Tuesday was $25,000 but we actually collected just over $30,000.  A planned giving 
mail drop is scheduled for the first week of February and there is work occurring on 
a planned giving website.  Reports are being created for the scholarship donors with 
zoom calls being scheduled with major gift owners.  There is a new fund, the Ralph 
Hudson skills trade scholarship fund, which is just under $50,000.  There is a total of 
570 donor types, the vast majority of which are individuals.  In reference to the 
Board of Directors giving, we are 26% to goal on restricted and 57% to goal on 
unrestricted.  In advisor giving, we are 265 to goal on restricted and 26% to goal on 
unrestricted. 
 
Mr. Hilsman joined the meeting.  

 
3. Board Development Report –  

Dr. Jack Scott said the committee did not meet in December.  We had four openings 
this year and we filled all four of them.  We will have openings in June.  We have 
one prospect, Stephen Miyabe, who is serving on a committee.  In our next meeting 
we will be discussing four or five possibilities for the new fiscal year. 
  

4. Business Council Report -  
Mr. Hoyt Hilsman reported the Business Council has a new mission going forward.  
Ms. Abram added that the Advancement Committee will be planning a campaign for 
the new Sarafian building.  One of the activities will involve early prospecting, raising 
restricted money.  Help will be needed connecting with local businesses that are 
involved with healthcare and natural sciences.  The Business Council will be 
involved in prospecting of the list for a possible campaign.  Mr. Hilsman said that the 
Business Council is excited by this opportunity which will be a great first step for 
outreach to the wider community to let them know what we are doing as a college. 

 
5. Communications & Public Relations Report -  

Ms. Potes-Fellow is initiating the work to create a new Strategic Communications 
and Marketing plan for the Foundation which would articulate the vision on how the 
Foundation tells its story. 

 
6. Scholarship & Student Success Committee Report –  

Mr. Greg Sun reported that the committee did not meet this month.  Ms. McPeak 
has been doing some research for the committee and we hope that will result in 
more than just the normal incremental improvements in our selection process.  She 
added that core competencies and rubric concepts will be proposed to the 
scholarship selection process in order to create an anti-biased selection process. 
           

7. Foundation President’s Report -  

Page 11



Executive Committee Meeting 
PCC Foundation  Page 4 
January 13, 2021 
 

Ms. Pitzer participated in some meetings with Ms. Abram to discuss the flea market 
and bringing it under the umbrella of the Foundation. 
 

8. Executive Director’s Report --   
Ms. Abram reported that we have been approached by the Flea Market Advisory 
Board to see if we can help the flea market, a nonprofit organization functioning 
under the 501(c)(3) of the Associated Students, get the appropriate legal 
infrastructure to continue to function.  We will work with the College to fit the flea 
market model into the model of the Foundation where anybody that needs to be 
hired can be hired by the College and then that money is reimbursed.  Steve Yee, a 
local attorney, has been consulted to help us recommend a structure for how that 
can be uniformly created.  We have also had a conversation with Fiscal Services at 
the college to make sure that we are doing this in a way that fits their needs as well.  
She hopes to bring a plan in March to the Foundation Board of Directors meeting.  
 
We are beginning work on the planning campaign for the Sarafian building.  A 
planning grant was received from the Ann Peppers Foundation so that we can 
continue creating a program that will support students from PUSD, about $250,000 
a year. 
 
The job description for a program coordinator is completed and will be posted in the 
next month. 
 
Pasadena Now printed our press release showing pictures of the new board 
members.  Thanks to Dr. Scott and Ms. Mills Ealy for their work on board 
development.  Rob Floe will be on the Scholarship Committee and he wishes to be 
on the campaign committee for the Sarafian building.  Craig Washington will sit on 
the Finance & Investment Committee and the Business Council Committee and 
asked to be on the Audit Committee. 

    
 

III.     MOTION TO ADJOURN 
There was a motion to adjourn the meeting at 5:10 p.m. 
 

MOTION:  ON MOTION OF Mr. Hawkins and seconded by Ms. Pitzer, the Executive 
Committee voted by the unanimous vote (aye: Ealy, Endrijonas, Frammolino, Hawkins, Hilsman, Miller, Mitchell, 
Newman, Pitzer, Potes-Fellow, Schweitzer, Scott, Sun; absent: Winter) of the thirteen members present to adjourn the 
January 13, 2021 meeting.  

 
 
 
 

 
MOTIONS FOR APPROVAL – January 13, 2021 

 
1. To approve the minutes of the Executive Committee Meeting held on December 9, 

2020.  
2. To approve expenditures presented on January 13, 2021. 
3. To receive the 2019-2020 Foundation audit. 
4. To adjourn the January 13, 2021 Executive Committee meeting. 
 

 

Page 12



Executive Committee Meeting 
PCC Foundation  Page 5 
January 13, 2021 
 

  
 
 

Page 13



















1/31/2021 12/31/2020 6/30/2020 YTD Return Last FY FYTD Return

Charles Schwab 707,551.09             257,526.35             174,332.70             0.0% n.a. -1.0%

Bank of the West - General -                          9,081.49                 192,553.52             

Bank of the West - Debit -                          -                          11,214.19               

Bank of the West - Merchant -                          -                          93,581.90               

Bank of the West - Checking -                          -                          4,677.21                 

Chase - 6517 3,000.00                 3,000.00                 

Chase - 6525 418,688.89             583,736.45             

Chase - 6533 8,651.75                 7,190.57                 

Chase - 6566 5,702.21                 5,702.21                 

Chase - 8060 262,001.86             42,000.55               

Chase - 6582 2,516.80                 7,244.61                 

1,408,112.60          915,482.23             476,359.52             

Charles Schwab 32,822,182.13        32,806,486.28        27,176,516.42        -0.1% 3.7% 16.9%

Osher Scholarship Funds* 2,086,155.68          2,086,155.68          2,086,155.68          

34,908,337.81        34,892,641.96        29,262,672.10        

Total Funds 36,316,450.41        35,808,124.19        29,739,031.62        

* Value provided by 3rd party sources

1/31/2021 12/31/2020 6/30/2020 YTD Return Last FY FYTD Return

Cash & Equivilants

Long-term 344,873.38             304,121.00             394,562.73             0.0% n.a. 0.0%

Stocks

Clifford Swan Investment Counsel Domestic: L/C 17,585,999.82        17,588,876.66        14,097,678.22        0.0% 1.9% 24.4%

iShares Core S&P Small-Call ETF** Domestic: S/C 511,364.37             481,647.90             357,907.89             6.3% purch. 5/20 43.9%

Wasatch Core Growth Fund** Domestic: S/C 590,565.52             584,075.10             351,057.02             1.1% purch. 5/20 36.5%

Matthews Pacific Tiger Int'l: Emerging (Asia) 849,511.56             816,973.09             640,469.45             4.0% -1.8% 40.7%

MFS International Value Fund Int'l: Developed 1,870,785.39          1,913,924.99          1,690,861.71          -2.3% 8.5% 16.6%

Invesco Oppenheimer Developing Mkts Int'l: Emerging 1,234,148.13          1,229,777.43          956,953.63             0.4% -1.9% 29.3%

22,642,374.79        22,615,275.17        18,094,927.92        0.1% 1.6% 25.1%

Fixed Income

Clifford Swan Investment Counsel Domestic 7,982,651.23          8,023,901.33          7,001,316.86          -0.5% 9.8% 0.1%

Doubleline Total Return Mtgs 415,128.11             413,799.62             414,573.08             0.3% 4.0% 1.8%

Vanguard Inflation-Protected Sec Fund Domestic SOLD  9/2020 SOLD  9/2020 368,046.07             n.a. 8.1% n.a.

First Trust Low Duration Opportunities ETF Domestic 401,700.00             401,466.00             403,104.00             0.1% 2.4% 0.9%

FPA New Income Fund Mortgage Backed/ABS 200,863.09             200,174.98             Purchased 11/2020 0.34                 1.60                      

9,000,342.43          9,039,341.93          8,187,040.01          -0.4% 9.3% 0.3%

Alternatives

DWS Enhanced Commodity Strategy Commodities 114,223.79             111,685.49             97,422.62               2.3% -14.6% 18.2%

Franklin K2 Alternative Strategy Fund Alternatives 137,691.74             138,028.94             127,238.41             -0.2% -1.0% 9.1%

Principal Global Multi-Strategy Fund Alternatives 132,163.90             132,514.16             124,691.73             -0.3% -0.4% 7.8%

SPDR Gold Trust Alternatives 450,512.10             465,519.60             150,633.00             -3.2% 25.7% 3.1%

834,591.53             847,748.19             499,985.76             -1.6% 2.1% 7.4%

Total Funds 32,822,182.13        32,806,486.28        27,176,516.42        

-                        

^ excluding Osher Scholarship Funds

* Performance figures are time weighted rate of return (annualized for periods greater than 1 year). These figures are gross of fees with the exception of mutual funds which are net of fees.

** Purchased 5/26/2020

Performance (%) - thru 1/31/2021

Fund Balances & Performance

Pasadena City College Foundation

Long-term Funds^ - Manager Performance

Fund Balances & Performance

Performance (%) - thru 1/31/2021

Market Value ($)

Market Value ($)

Foundation Funds - Short-term

Foundation Funds - Long-term

Page 14



* excluded Osher Scholarships

Fund Balance: $32,822,182.13 Fund Balance: $1,408,112.60

Foundation Asset Balance: $36,316,450.41

Pasadena City College Foundation
Asset Allocation 

Long-term Funds - Schwab* Short-term Funds

1/31/2021

Cash (0-100)
$344,873 

1%

F/I - Domestic   (15-30)
$9,000,342 

27%

F/I - High Yield  (0-10)
$-

0%
Stocks - Large/Mid (20-60)

$17,586,000 
54%

Stocks - Small  (0-20)
$1,101,930 

3%

Stocks - Int'l (0-30)
$3,954,445 

12%

Alternatives (0-20)
$834,592 

3%

Cash - BOW/Chase
$344,873 

50%

Cash - Schwab
$700,562 50%

Page 15



FY 2020/21 YTD Report

As of 3/4/2021

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual

2020/21 Q1 9/30/20 2020/21 Q2 12/31/20 2020/21 Q3 as of 3/4/21 2020/21 Q4 2020/21 TOTAL

Total: 533,220.14$                     2,269,692.52$                  458,541.20$                  3,261,453.86$          

Unrestricted: 13,821.61$                      85,927.86$                      36,538.63$                    136,288.10$             

Restricted: 519,398.53$                    2,183,764.66$                 422,002.57$                  3,125,165.76$          

(Excludes In-Kind/Pledge Gifts)

Actual 2020/21 YTD Actual 2020/21 YTD Actual 2019/20 YTD Actual 2020/21 YTD

Unrestricted 3/4/2021 Restricted 3/4/2021 Unrestricted 3/4/2020 Restricted 3/4/2020

Cash 116,538.13$                     2,722,837.76$                  116,347.21$                  1,022,788.00$           

In-Kind -$                                 156,006.84$                     -$                               39,431.25$                

Pledge/Planned -$                                 20,000.00$                       -$                               -$                           

Pledge Installment 19,749.97$                       402,328.00$                     249,116.64$                  204,728.66$              

136,288.10$                     3,301,172.60$                  365,463.85$                  1,266,947.91$           

No. of Gifts 221 1166 188 1093

No. of Constituents 160 541 136 467

Expected Pledge Payments in FY 795,205.00$                     

% of Pledge Installments 53.1%

Unrestricted Goal % to Goal

2020/21 6/30/2021

254,000.00$                     54%

1 of 4

Page 16



FY 2020/21 YTD Report

As of 3/4/2021

New Funds Fund Start Date

Rapid Response Fund 7/7/2020

Gertmenian Culinary Program Scholarship 7/15/2020

Gertmenian Culinary Program Emergency Scholarship Fund 7/15/2020

Annual Fund: League of Women Voters Pasadena Centennial Sch. 7/15/2020

Alan and Sheila Lamson Emergency Needs Fund 7/22/2020

Margaret Diedrich Tinley Memorial Scholarship Fund 8/13/2020

Alexander and Adelaide Hixon Center for the Arts Fund 11/10/2020

Ralph Hudson Skills Trade Scholarship Fund 1/10/2021

The Hagop M. Seropian Armenian Spririt Award 1/27/2021

The Shelly Gaskin Fund in memory of Florence Stroup 1/27/2021

Ujima Program Scholarship Fund 1/27/2021

Van Halen Memorial Fund 2/19/2021

Donor Types Count

Individuals 595

Organizations/Companies 32

Third Party 41

Non-Profits 15

Total: 683

New Donors Count

Individuals/Non-Profit/Orgs. 263

Third Party 17

Total: 280

2 of 4

Page 17



FY 2020/21 YTD Report

As of 3/4/2021

Foundation Board of Directors Giving (35 total) Name Restricted Giving 20/21/YTD Unrestricted Giving 20/21YTD

Geoffrey Baum Yes Yes

Scott A. Bell No No

Glen Bowie No Yes

Sheldon Bull No Yes

Vivian Chan No No

Dana Dattola No Yes

Gloria de Olarte Yes No

Erika Endrijonas Yes Yes

Robert Floe No No

Ralph A. Frammolino No Yes

Carmella Grahn No Yes

Mark Harmsen Yes Yes

William A. Hawkins No Yes

Hoyt Hilsman No No

William  L. Krantz No Yes

Cynthia Kurtz Yes No

Stephanie Lam No No

Nancy Lan No Yes

Robert B. Miller No Yes

Charmayne L. Mills-Ealy No Yes

Michael Mitchell No No

Ryan Newman No Yes

Jim Osterling No Yes

Gilda Pettit No No

Clara I. Potes-Fellow No Yes

James P. Sarni Yes Yes

Gloria Scharre Pitzer No Yes

Reinhold Schrader No No

Donald Schweitzer No No

Jack A. Scott Yes Yes

Charles Stanislawski No Yes

Gregory Sun Yes Yes

Justin Tsui No Yes

Craig Washington No Yes

Wade Winter Yes Yes

No. of Board Members 9 24

% of Board Giving 26% 69%

Amount Received $26,241.74 $41,059.97

3 of 4

Page 18



FY 2020/21 YTD Report

As of 3/4/2021

Foundation Advisor Giving (27 total) Name Restricted Giving 20/21/YTD Unrestricted Giving 20/21YTD

Donald H. Anderson No No

Robert L. Cheney No No

Melvin Cohen No Yes

Richard S. Cupp No No

John C. Cushman No Yes

Jonathan S. Fuhrman No No

Julie Gallant Yes No

William Galloway No Yes

William E. Goldmann No Yes

Don Hopf No No

Preston E. Howard Yes No

James P. Kossler Yes No

Mark A. Ladesich No Yes

Carol J. Liu Yes No

Sandra Mejia-Ramirez No Yes

Roberta M. Moon Yes No

William Opel Yes No

Dianne Philibosian Yes No

Richard E. Ratliff No No

Estela S. Richeda No No

Janet J. Rose No Yes

Lonnie Schield No Yes

Phyllis Specht No No

Lisa A. Sugimoto No No

Ladd Thomas No Yes

William E. Thomson No No

Winston S. Uchiyama Yes No

No. of Advisors 8 9

% of Advisor Giving 30% 33%

Amount Received $25,578.00 $14,500.00

4 of 4

Page 19


	EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
	1570 E Colorado Blvd., Pasadena, California 91106
	Exec Comm minutes - Jan 13 2021.pdf
	EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
	ZOOM Conference https://cccconfer.zoom.us/j/96544167344
	1570 East Colorado Boulevard, Pasadena, California 91106




